City of Geneva, lllinois
Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

102 North Fourth Street

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (PIN):

12-03-405-009

HISTORIC NAME: O'Brien-Dooley House

COMMON NAME: Anderson House

DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: Circa 1850

SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: 1912-1923, 1998

ARCHITECT: W. Alex Teipel

BUILDER: n/a
WILSON BROTHERS: [ AUGUST [ OSCAR [ BOTH
ARCHITECTURAL DATA:

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: Three-Bay, Greek Revival

OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Rectangular, Irregular

LOCAL SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

NUMBER OF STORIES: 2

[ ] significant

FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Parged, Poured Concrete

|z| Contributing

PRIMARY WALL MATERIAL(S): Clapboard

|:| Non-Contributing — Built After 1987

|:| Non-Contributing — Reversible Alterations

FRONT PORCH: Entry

|:| Non-Contributing — Irreversible Alterations

VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: N/A

HISTORIC DISTRICT LOCATION:

ENTRY DOOR(S): Non-historic

|:| Central Geneva NRHD

WINDOW MATERIAL: Wood (replacement)

|E| North Geneva NRHD

WINDOW STYLE: Double-hung (simulated 8/8 and 6/6)

|E| Local Geneva HD

PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Side Gable

|:| Not in HD / Individual Historic Landmark

PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Asphalt

NR DISTRICT SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

VISIBLE CHIMNEY: Yes

|E| Contributing

|:| Non-Contributing

CHIMNEY MATERIAL: Brick

|:| Not Applicable / Not in NR District

OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES:

n/a

HPC ACTION:

|:| Demolition Approved: n/a

Other HPC Action: 11 17.98 Additions




City of Geneva, lllinois
Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

ADDITIONAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

102 North Fourth Street

BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION:

The house was built by Patrick and Julia (Butler) O'Brien shortly
before or soon after their marriage in April 1849. Patrick O'Brien
(1822-1855) died in August 1855. His widow, Julia (1823-1903),
continued to live in the house with their two children until her
marriage to widower Michael L Dooley (1816-1885) in April 1863.
The family moved to a farm in Blackberry Township. Sometime
between 1868 and 1874, the property was sold to Charles and
Elizabeth Smith.

Charles Smith was an early manufacturer in Geneva but moved to
California around 1874 before returning to and settling in Kansas.
Upon his departure, the Fourth Street property was sold to Kaneville
farmer Needham N. Ravlin (1823-1899), who apparently never lived
in the house himself. In 1879, Ravlin sold the property to a retired
farmer, Aaron Baker (1819-1892); the property remained in the
Baker family until 1891 when the property was sold to a series of
successive owners.

SOURCES:

GHPC Case Studies; 2016 Central North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869 Bird's Eye
View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Recorder's Office Land
Records

CONTRIBUTING ACCESSORY STRUCTURES:

AS1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:
n/a

AS2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:
n/a

CONTRIBUTING LANDSCAPE FEATURES:

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:
n/a
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	BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION: The house was built by Patrick and Julia (Butler) O'Brien shortly before or soon after their marriage in April 1849. Patrick O'Brien (1822-1855) died in August 1855. His widow, Julia (1823-1903), continued to live in the house with their two children until her marriage to widower Michael L Dooley (1816-1885) in April 1863. The family moved to a farm in Blackberry Township. Sometime between 1868 and 1874, the property was sold to Charles and Elizabeth Smith.

Charles Smith was an early manufacturer in Geneva but moved to California around 1874 before returning to and settling in Kansas. Upon his departure, the Fourth Street property was sold to Kaneville farmer Needham N. Ravlin (1823-1899), who apparently never lived in the house himself. In 1879, Ravlin sold the property to a retired farmer, Aaron Baker (1819-1892); the property remained in the Baker family until 1891 when the property was sold to a series of successive owners.

Dr. Elmer L. Anderson, DDS (1903-1982), and his wife, Pearl A. (Swanson) Anderson (1908-1984), married in Batavia in August 1934. The Andersons purchased Lots 1 and 2 of Block 32 of Geneva in November 1938. At that time, the northern half of their property was vacant. Mr. Anderson was first licensed as an Illinois dentist in 1925 and was working in that profession as early as 1930 in Geneva, Illinois. By 1940, Dr. Anderson’s practice was located in the Unity Building at 312 West State Street. Between 1950 and 1956, the Andersons built a new dental office on the northern half of their property on Fourth Street.

In 1983, widow Pearl A. Anderson sold the north half of the property to dentist Gary Krueger (see 112 N. Fourth Street).

In 1985, David L. Anderson and Nancy C. Otis (children of Dr. and Mrs. Anderson) sold the south half of the property to James and Judith Barnes. In 1996, their architect, W. Alex Teipel, presented plans for two significant additions to the original home. The Historic Preservation Commission rejected the initial plans for the expansion of the house in October 1998 but reluctantly accepted the proposal following some minor modifications the following month.

The property is notable for its association with architecture and community development—specifically the Early Settlement Period of Geneva (1837-1857).
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